# **MINUTES**

# JOINT MEETING OF THE CITY OF BROOKINGS COMMON COUNCIL AND THE CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS August 30, 2002

City of Brookings Mayor Bob Hagbom called the joint meeting of the City of Brookings Common Council and the Curry County Board of Commissioners to order at 9:17 a.m. in the Best Western Brookings Inn Conference Center, 1143 Chetco Avenue, Brookings, Oregon, on the above date with the following City Councilors and County Commissioners and staff in attendance.

Curry County Commissioner Rachael Schaaf Curry County Commissioner Marilyn Schafer Curry County Commissioner Lucie LaBonté City of Brookings Mayor Bob Hagbom City of Brookings Councilor Larry Curry City of Brookings Councilor Frances Johns Kern City of Brookings Councilor Rick Dentino City of Brookings Councilor Lorraine Kuhn Curry County Counsel Jerry Herbage City Attorney John Trew City of Brookings City Manager Leroy Blodgett Curry County Planning Director Grant Young City of Brookings Planning Director John Bischoff City of Brookings Community Development Director Leo Lightle Curry County Planner Diane Snow Brookings Community Development Secretary Cathie Mahon Brookings Administrative Secretary Linda Barker

Representing various Public Agencies were: DLCD Field Representative Dave Perry ODOT Short Term Planner Tom Guevara ODF & W Representative Russ Stauff

Also present were approximately 75 citizens.

Commissioner Schaaf led the Pledge of Allegiance followed by remarks from City Attorney John Trew explaining that this would be a legislative hearing. No time limit would be imposed on speakers as it was hoped each speaker would limit voluntarily their remarks and repetitive testimony would be avoided.

Mayor Hagbom opened the public hearing, a hearing to consider amending the City's and County's Comprehensive Plans policies and inventory, including a Public Facilities and Services Plan, a Water Master Plan/Water Conservation Management Plan, and a Transportation Systems Plan. The County's amendments and actions will pertain only to the Urban Growth Boundary.

City of Brookings Planning Director John Bischoff presented the City of Brookings staff report which is attached and made a part of these minutes. Commissioner LaBonté questioned Bischoff if the Luzier Study would remain in the amendments. Bischoff answered that it would not but it still is a valid study with information on the Chetco River.

Curry County Planning Director Grant Young gave Curry County's staff report which is attached and made a part of these minutes.

Testimony was given by representatives from the following public agencies:

DLCD, Dave Perry, Field Representative

ODOT, Tom Guevara, Short Term Planner

ODF & W, Russ Stauff, Field Representative

During testimony by Dave Perry, Sam Hall, 15559 Oceanview Drive, asked how property values would be affected. He had received the notice of public hearing stating the actions of the ordinances being considered may reduce the value of property. City of Brookings Planning Director Bischoff explained Measure 56 and its ramifications on Public Hearing notices stating that neither the City nor County has made a determination that these actions would reduce property values.

During testimony by Tom Guevara, Milt Gowman, 96903 Gowman Lane, asked if any plans were included in the Transportation Systems Plan to widen Highway 101. After short discussion, Commissioner LaBonté noted this was outside of the scope of today's hearing.

Testimony was also taken from Hann Lee, 4708 NE 22<sup>nd</sup> Avenue, Vancouver WA 98653, during this portion of the agenda as he was involved with studies that are included in the Transportation System Plan.

Testimony was taken from the following members of the public:

•		
Archie LeCoque	PO Box 1447	Brookings, Oregon
Gloria Osborne	PO Box 31	Brookings, Oregon
Pete Chasar	935 Marina Heights Road	<b>Brookings Oregon</b>
Dave Itzen	15629 Pedrioli Drive	<b>Brookings Oregon</b>
Kurt Kessler	PO Box 6335	<b>Brookings Oregon</b>
Walter Cook	538 Cushing Court	<b>Brookings Oregon</b>
Michael Farthing	767 Willamette Street, Ste 203	Eugene Oregon
Robin Itzen	14769 Itzen Drive	<b>Brookings Oregon</b>
John Mathison	PO Box 2972	<b>Brookings Oregon</b>
L. C. Ashcraft	15261 Oceanview Drive	<b>Brookings Oregon</b>
Jim Capp	PO Box 2937	Harbor Oregon
Milt Gowman	96903 Gowman Lane	Brookings Oregon
Susanne Freeman	PO Box 2957	Harbor Oregon
Carol Crockett	PO Box 2065	Harbor Oregon
Bill Buchanan	15633 Campbell Road	Brookings Oregon
Kathy Wiggins	Representing OR Dept of Forestry	
Ralph Brown	PO Box 968	<b>Brookings Oregon</b>

Minutes: Public Hearing on Periodic Review, August 30, 2002 Prepared by Linda Barker, Administrative Secretary The meeting recessed until 12:38 p.m. while copies of all exhibits were made for the Commissioners and Councilors. City of Brookings Planning Director John Bischoff reviewed the exhibits that had been received. Exhibits were received during the Public Hearing as follows:

- 1. letter from OTAK dated 8-28-02
- 2. letter from Curry Guides Association dated August 7, 2002
- 3. letter from Oregon Department of Transportation dated August 29, 2002
- 4. copy of email to Michel Farthing from Hann Lee dated June 13, 2002
- 5. letter from Pete Chasar dated August 29, 2002
- 6. written testimony from Yvonne Maitland titled Public Facilities Plan Brookings
- 7. letter from Michael E. Farthing dated August 30, 2002
- 8. handwritten letter from Winharbor Farms, Susanne Freeman and Carol Crockett dated August 30, 2002 with attachments
- 9. letter from Oregon Water Resources Department to David McAllister, Department of Fish and Wildlife dated July 26, 2002
- 10. letter from Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife to Paul Cleary, Water Resources Department dated July 16, 2002
- 11. City of Brookings Public Hearing Packet
- 12. Curry County Public Hearing Packet

It was noted that copies of all exhibits had been distributed to the Commissioners and Councilors. Councilor Kuhn moved, it was seconded and the Council voted unanimously to accept the exhibits listed above into the record. Commissioner LaBonté moved, it was seconded and the Commissioners voted unanimously to accept Exhibits 1 through 12 into the record.

Councilor Kuhn moved, it was seconded and the Council voted unanimously to close the public hearing. Commissioner LaBonté moved, it was seconded and the Commission voted unanimously to close the Public Hearing for Curry County.

The meeting was recessed for lunch at 12:45 p.m. and reconvened at 1:52 p.m.

City Attorney John Trew explained that one exhibit that had been given to the Commissioners and Councilors had not been given an exhibit number. Councilor Dentino moved, it was seconded and the Council voted unanimously to reopen the public hearing to accept Exhibit No. 13. Commissioner LaBonté moved, it was seconded and the Commissioner voted unanimously to reopen the public hearing to accept Exhibit #13. City of Brookings Planning Director Bischoff identified Exhibit No.13 as a letter from Michael W. Mehaffy dated August 29, 2002.

Commissioner Schaff moved, it was seconded and the Commission voted unanimously to accept Exhibit No. 13 into the record. Councilor Kuhn moved, it was seconded and the Council voted unanimously to accept Exhibit No. 13 into the record.

Commissioner LaBonté moved, it was seconded, and the Commission voted unanimously to close the public hearing. Councilor Kuhn moved, it was seconded, and the Council voted unanimously to close the public hearing.

City Of Brookings Planning Director Bischoff reviewed changes to proposed Brookings Ordinance No. 02-O-548. Curry County Planning Director Young summarized changes to Curry County Ordinances No. 02-03, 02-04 and 02-05.

Mayor Hagbom asked for deliberation from the Council. There were no questions or comments.

City of Brookings Planning Director Bischoff read Ordinance No. 02-O-548 in its entirety. Councilor Johns Kern moved, it was seconded and the Council voted unanimously to have the second reading of 02-O-548 by title only. Bischoff read Ordinance No. 02-O-548 by title only.

Councilor Dentino moved, it was seconded and the Council voted unanimously to adopt Ordinance No. 02-O-548, in the matter of an ordinance adopting revisions to the City of Brookings Comprehensive Plan pursuant to Task 2, 3 and 4 of Periodic Review Work Program (Order #00001) and (Order #00973).

City Manager Leroy Blodgett read Ordinance No. 02-O-553 in its entirety. Councilor Johns Kern moved, it was seconded and the Council voted unanimously to have the second reading of 02-O-553 by title only. Blodgett read Ordinance No. 02-O-553 by title only.

Councilor Dentino moved, it was seconded and the Council voted unanimously to adopt Ordinance No. 02-O-553, in the matter of an ordinance adopting a Water Curtailment Plan for the City of Brookings to reduce the level of water regularly used by the City's residents and apportion among the residents a restricted supply of water during summer shortages.

The City of Brookings portion of this meeting was concluded at 2:25 p.m.

County Counsel Jerry Herbage explained the differences in County and City Ordinance procedures and deliberation was opened on Curry County Ordinances No. 02-03, 02-04, and 02-05. Commissioner Schafer moved, it was seconded and the Commission voted unanimously to read Curry County Ordinances No. 02-03, 02-04, and 02-05 by title only. Herbage read Ordinance No. 02-03 by title only. He explained that only one reading was necessary and reviewed proposed changes to the ordinance from its draft form. Commissioner Schafer moved, it was seconded and the Commission voted unanimously to adopt Curry County Ordinance No. 02-03, an ordinance in the matter of adoption of revisions to the Curry County Comprehensive Plan to amend the City of Brookings Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) in response to DLCD modified Periodic Review Work Program (DLCD Orders #00001 & 00973), with changes as detailed by Herbage.

Herbage read Curry County Ordinance No. 02-04 by title only and reviewed changes from the proposed draft ordinance. Commissioner LaBonté moved, it was seconded and the Commission voted to adopt Curry County Ordinance No. 02-04, an ordinance in the matter of adoption of revisions to the Curry County Comprehensive Plan to amend the City of Brookings Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) in response to DLCD modified Periodic Review Work Program (DLCD Orders #00001 & 00973).

Herbage read Curry County Ordinance No. 02-05 by title only and clarified changes to the draft

ordinance. Commissioner Schafer moved, it was seconded and the Commission voted to adopt Curry County Ordinance No. 02-05, an ordinance in the matter of adoption of revisions to the Curry County Comprehensive Plan to amend the City of Brookings Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) in response to DLCD modified Periodic Review Work Program (DLCD Orders #00001 & 00973) with changes as outlined by Counsel Herbage.

Commissioner Labonté moved, it was seconded and the Commission voted to include the changes to Curry County Ordinance No. 02-04 as reviewed by Counsel Herbage.

This concluded the County's portion of the meeting.

After comments from Mayor Hagbom, Commissioner Schaaf and Commissioner Schafer, Commissioner Schaaf moved, it seconded and the Commission voted unanimously to adjourn at 2:44 p.m. Councilor Curry moved, it was seconded and the Council voted unanimously to adjourn the meeting.

Respectfully submitted,

Bob Hagborn,

Mayor, City of Brookings

ATTEST:

Paul Hughes City Recorder

# CITY OF BROOKINGS CITY COUNCIL STAFF AGENDA REPORT

SUBJECT: Periodic Review--completion

FILE NO: Periodic Review 2002 HEARING DATE: August 30, 2002 REPORT DATE: August 20, 2002

ITEM NO: I

### **GENERAL INFORMATION**

APPLICANT:

City Initiated.

REPRESENTATIVE:

Staff

**ACTION:** 

Adopt materials and ordinance to complete the Periodic Review process for the City

of Brookings.

LOCATION:

The area within the Brookings City Limits and within the Urban Growth Boundary.

**PUBLIC NOTICE:** 

Mailed to all property owners within the City Limits and Urban Growth Boundary.

### **BACKGROUND INFORMATION**

The City of Brookings was initially called into periodic review in 1988 and due to staff changes progress was delayed to 1992. Also in 1992 the state changed the periodic review process and the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) issued Order #00001, officially calling the city into periodic review under the new rules, essentially restarting the process. Under the new rules the city was required to complete an evaluation of the provisions of the Comprehensive Plan in regard to existing conditions, and from the evaluation, generated a work program to bring the Comprehensive Plan up to date. The city's periodic review process also equally involved the county because the review must also include the UGB, which is in the county's jurisdiction. The work program initially contained 5 work tasks as follows:

- 1. Expand the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) to include sufficient developable land for the projected growth over the next 20 years.
- 2. Amend the Comprehensive Plan goals and policies as required reflect existing conditions and all new state and federal law.
- 3. Establish a Public Facilities and Services Plan to provide the framework to extend services into the expanded UGB.
- 4. Establish a Transportation System Plan for the city and UGB.
- 5. Establish an Urban Reserve Area around the new UGB containing sufficient developable land for 50 years of projected growth. The City of Brookings was one of seven cities mandated to establish an Urban Reserve Area.

Task 5 was eventually eliminated due to a change in state law that removed the mandate and Order #00973 was issued amending the work program.

Task 1 was completed and adopted by the city and county in 1995 and submitted to DLCD for their review and comment. DLCD approved the boundary expansion with six items remanded back to the city and county to provide further information. This approval was appealed to the Oregon Land Conservation and Development Commission (LCDC), which subsequently upheld the DLCD decision. The LCDC decision was appealed to the State Court of Appeals, which upheld LCDC. Opponents asked the State Supreme Court to review the Court of Appeals decision. The Supreme Court rejected this request.

The six remand items were considered and adopted at hearings in November 2000 and February 2001 and submitted to DLCD for review and at the city and county's request, a LCDC hearing was held and the remand items were approved. This essentially completed Task 1 of the work program.

The attached materials are submitted to complete Tasks 2, 3 and 4 of the work program and includes Ordinance 02-O-548 with suggested amendments to the Comprehensive Plan goals and policies, the Public Facilities and Services Plan and the Transportation Systems Plan. Also included are the Water Master Plan and Conservation Management Plan and the water withdrawal study completed by Luzier Hydrosciences, as supplements to Goal 11, Public Facilities. It should be noted that many of the figures and maps in the existing Comprehensive Plan must also be amended and updated. The city has a six-month period after approval by DLCD to provide a codified edition of the amended Comprehensive Plan. DLCD staff has stated that the updated maps and figures can be included in that submittal. It should also be noted that the figures used in the goal amendments reflect 1993 data since that is the time most of the data was generated and technically the period represented by the Comprehensive Plan. However, in some cases later data has been used, primarily because it could not be interpolated back to 1993.

The following is a brief description of each of the attachments to Ordinance 548.

# Goal 3, Agriculture

Attachment A. This amends Goal 3 to include recognition of the Curry County Harbor Bench Farm District and related overlay zone and provides a policy that the city will adopt the farm district and overlay zone if any portion of the district is annexed into the city. This is ensures that the farmers will receive the same protection under the city's jurisdiction as under the county.

# Goal 5, Open Spaces, Scenic and Historic Areas and Natural Resources

Attachment B. This amends Goal 5 to bring the findings and policies up to date and adds provisions to implement riparian corridor protection as required by state law.

Attachment B1. This amends the Goal 5 Inventory. The primary changes are to update the information on parks, i.e. the addition of Azalea Park as a city park; amend the various tables to include data added and generated by the UGB expansion.

Attachments B2 is additional information that was not in the original packet that staff is now recommending for adoption. Attachment B2 is a copy of the Economic, Social,

Environment, and Energy (ESEE) analysis the city has prepared as required by a policy in Goal 14 that was adopted to satisfy one of the UGB expansion remand issues. The ESEE analysis has resulted in a Water Curtailment ordinance that provides the city with the ability to impose measures to restrict water use in times of emergency, including low surface water flows in the Chetco River. The Curtailment Ordinance is on your agenda for adoption as a provision of Goal 11 of the Comprehensive Plan. See Goal 11 below. Staff has worked with DLCD and ODF&W to produce both the ESEE analysis and the curtailment ordinance and have agreement on both.

# Goal 6, Air, Water, and Land Resources Quality

Attachment C. The only change in Goal 6 was to remove reference to the solid waste incinerator that no longer exists.

# Goal 9, Economy

Attachment D. Goal 9 findings, policies and implementation procedures been amended to reflect the changes in the labor market, technology, tourism, and demographics of the area. Employment numbers have been updated and projected commercial and industrial land needs from the boundary expansion data have been added. The city's redevelopment efforts in regard to the core area is also included.

Attachment D1. The Goal 9 Inventory has been amended by updating data pertaining to employment, timber harvest, commercial fishing and processing, and other economic factors.

# Goal 10, Housing

Attachment E. Using the figures generated by the UGB expansion, Goal 10 has been amended to reflect the changes in population, projected population and the related housing needs since the original 1981 figures. The only policy change is related to the placement of manufactured housing to reflect changes in state law.

Attachment E1. The Goal 10 Inventory has been amended using the data generated by the UGB expansion, including population changes and projections, existing housing and future housing needs.

# Goal 11, Public Facilities and Services.

Attachment F. Goal 11 findings and policies have been extensively amended to reflect today's conditions and requirements. The Goal now contains information as to which jurisdiction will provide water, sewer and storm drain services to the various areas of the UGB. Water and wastewater capacities have been updated and information on the various parks in the area has been updated.

Attachment F1. The Goal 11 inventory has been amended to reflect today's conditions with up to date Fire Department, water and wastewater capacities, school enrollment, and park information.

Attachment F2. The Public Facilities and Services Plan is made a supplemental document to Goal 11.

Attachment F3. The Water Master Plan and Water Conservation Management Plan is also made a supplemental document to Goal 11. Also supplemental to Goal 11 is the Luzier Hydrosciences report on water withdrawal.

Attachment F4. Water Curtailment Ordinance, which is also on your agenda for adoption at this hearing.

### Goal 12, Transportation.

Attachment G. Goal 12 has been amended to reflect the provisions of the Transportation Systems Plan.

Attachment G1. The Goal 12 inventory has also been amended to reflect the provision of the Transportation Systems Plan.

Attachment G2. The Transportation System Plan is made a supplemental document to Goal 12.

### Goal 14, Urbanization.

Attachment H. The findings for Goal 14 have been extensively amended to reflect the data collected for the UGB expansion. The policies and implementation procedures have also been amended in relation to this new data.

Attachment H1. The Goal 14 inventory has also been extensively amended to reflect the data from the UGB expansion, including existing residential, commercial and industrial lands and future land needs.

Attachment H2. In your packet were proposed changes to policies adopted to satisfy the remand items of the UGB expansion. Staff is now recommending against these changes. An Economic, Social, Environmental, and Energy (ESEE) analysis has been completed. The changes in your packet are no longer necessary and staff is now recommending that the policies be amended to add a statement that an ESEE analysis has been completed. See Attachment H2 Revised for the recommended wording.

# Goal 16, Estuarine Resources

Attachment I. The findings within Goal 16 have been amended primarily to incorporate changes in state law, with other changes to reflect today's conditions. Only a few changes to the policies of this goal have been made and again to incorporate new law. The inventory of Goal 16 consists entirely of the Chetco River Estuary Plan and has not been amended.

# Goals 17 and 18, Coastal Shorelands, Beaches and Dunes

Attachment J. The changes in Goals 17 and 18 are primarily to incorporate new state law regarding beaches and dunes. Some changes have been made to more accurately reflect today's conditions.

Attachment J1. The inventory for Goals 17 and 18 has been amended for the same reasons as the policy section. Also added to the inventory is a list of structures built before 1977, which are exempt from certain laws involving beach front protection.

# RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends **ADOPTION** of Ordinance No. 02-O-458 with its attachments as amended in this report.

#### Exhibit "1"

# Curry County Board of Commissioners STAFF REPORT for COMPLETION OF THE CITY OF BROOKINGS PERIODIC REVIEW

**HEARING DATE:** August 30, 2001

**REPORT DATE:** August 29, 2002

# REPORT PREPARED BY: Grant Young, Planning Director

# I. GENERAL INFORMATION

Applicant:

City of Brookings Initiated in response to DLCD

Orders #0001 & #00973

**Action:** 

Adoption of Ordinances #02-03, #02-04 and #02-05

to complete the Periodic Review Process for the

City of Brookings

Area of Action:

Land within the City of Brookings Urban Growth

Boundary and outside of the City of Brookings City

Limits in Curry County, Oregon.

# II. NATURE OF REQUEST

This matter is a public hearing to adopt ordinances with attached materials to complete the City of Brookings Periodic Review process.

The City of Brookings began its first Periodic Review in July, 1992 as required by Order #00001 issued by the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD). The process included amendment of its Urban Growth Boundary (UGB). The city's periodic review process must include Curry County as the review includes the UGB which is within the county's jurisdiction. The City's work program initially contained 5 work tasks as follows:

1. Expand the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) to include sufficient developable land for the

- projected growth over the next 20 years.
- 2. Amend the Comprehensive Plan goals and policies as required reflect existing conditions and all new state and federal law.
- 3. Establish a Public Facilities and Services Plan to provide the framework to extend services into the expanded UGB.
- 4. Establish a Transportation System Plan for the city and UGB.
- 5. Establish an Urban Reserve Area around the new UGB containing sufficient developable land for 50 years of projected growth. The City of Brookings was one of seven cities mandated to establish an Urban Reserve Area.

Work Task #5 was eliminated due to a change in state law removing the mandate, and Order #00973 was issued amending the city's work program. The city and county together with consultants worked on revision of the UGB and submitted a plan and findings to support expansion to LCDC in August, 1995. DLCD reviewed the proposed UGB amendment and remanded to the city and county for further action in January, 1996. The remand order was appealed by Fred Hummel et. al. to LCDC which reviewed the DLCD approval and remanded it to the city and county with amendments to the original order in April, 1996. The LCDC remand order was appealed to the Oregon Court of Appeals by Fred Hummel et. al. which reviewed and remanded to LCDC in Hummel et. al. v LCDC and Brookings, et. al. dated February 11, 1998. Following the Court of Appeals decision, Fred Hummel et. al. filed a petition for review of the decision with the Oregon Supreme Court which declined review. DLCD returned the remand order to the city and county for response to the six remaining remand issues. The remand issues were considered and adopted at hearings in November, 2000, and February, 2001 and submitted to DLCD for review; the city and county requested an LCDC hearing on the submittal which was held on May 22, 2001, and resulted in approval of the submittal.

# III. MATERIAL PROPOSED FOR ADOPTION – ORDINANCES AND ATTACHMENTS

### A. Ordinance #02-03

This is an "enabling ordinance" the purpose of which is to amend the Curry County Comprehensive Plan by adoption of items identified as attachments. The attachments are specific products that either change or support all or portions of the Comprehensive Plan. The material is adopted to satisfy specific work tasks identified in the above-referenced DLCD Orders. The following is a brief description of the attachments:

### Exhibit "1"

# Curry County Board of Commissioners STAFF REPORT for COMPLETION OF THE CITY OF BROOKINGS PERIODIC REVIEW

**HEARING DATE:** August 30, 2001

**REPORT DATE:** August 29, 2002

# REPORT PREPARED BY: Grant Young, Planning Director

# I. GENERAL INFORMATION

Applicant: City of Brookings Initiated in response to DLCD

Orders #0001 & #00973

**Action:** Adoption of Ordinances #02-03, #02-04 and #02-05

to complete the Periodic Review Process for the

City of Brookings

Area of Action: Land within the City of Brookings Urban Growth

Boundary and outside of the City of Brookings City

Limits in Curry County, Oregon.

## II. NATURE OF REQUEST

This matter is a public hearing to adopt ordinances with attached materials to complete the City of Brookings Periodic Review process.

The City of Brookings began its first Periodic Review in July, 1992 as required by Order #00001 issued by the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD). The process included amendment of its Urban Growth Boundary (UGB). The city's periodic review process must include Curry County as the review includes the UGB which is within the county's jurisdiction. The City's work program initially contained 5 work tasks as follows:

1. Expand the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) to include sufficient developable land for the

# 1) Attachments A & B:

These attachments are Transportation System Plans (TSP) for the City of Brookings and Curry County, adopted to address work task #4. The TSP's are separate, for the separate jurisdictions of the city and county, but must be consistent in the area of the UGB. The Curry County TSP is adopted and applicable by this action only to the UGB, and contains elements of the City of Brookings TSP to ensure consistency. The City's TSP is adopted in its entirety as a supporting document to the Goal 12 element of the Curry County Comprehensive Plan (CCCP).

# 2) Attachment C:

This attachment is the Goal 12 element of the CCCP which must be amended to include the adopted TSP to address work task #4-72

# 3) Attachment D

This attachment is the City of Brookings Public Facilities Plan, adopted to address work task #3. The Public Facilities Plan is adopted as a supporting document to the Goal 11 element of the CCCP. It should be noted that remand issue #6 of the above-referenced remand issues approved by LCDC at the hearing held on May 22, 2001, required a specific amendment to the Special District Planning Coordination Agreements. This amendment required that detailed "urban service agreements" be completed with each special district at the time of adoption of the Public Facilities Plan for the UGB.

It is the county's responsibility to coordinate and negotiate these agreements, and extensive efforts have been made with no results. Exhibit A of this report is a copy of all activity to-date on the part of the county to obtain these agreements. The county has requested assistance from DLCD in further efforts to obtain these agreements.

# 4) Attachment E:

This attachment is adopted to address work task #3 as supporting documents to the city's Public Facilities Plan and therefore supporting documents to the CCCP. It includes a report and water conservation plan which conservation plan includes a water curtailment ordinance. This material is adopted to address the requirements in CCCP Section 14.8 (Plan Policies Regarding Urbanization).

# 5) Attachment F:

This attachment is adopted to address work task #3 by amending the CCCP Chapter 11 to include reference to the City of Brookings Public Facilities Plan, which is adopted as a supporting document to the CCCP Goal 11 element.

# 6) Attachment G:

This attachment is adopted to amend Section 14.8 (Plan Policies Regarding Urbanization) to reflect that the requirements of the existing policy have been met. This attachment addresses work task #3.

### B. Ordinance #02-04

This is an "enabling ordinance" the purpose of which is to amend the Curry County Zoning Ordinance (CCZO) by adoption of items identified as attachments. The attachments are specific products that accomplish two things; 1) the legislative rezoning of the land in the Urban Growth Area; and 2) implementation of the Curry County Transportation System Plan. The material is adopted to satisfy specific work tasks identified in the above-referenced DLCD Orders. The following is a brief description of the attachments:

#### 1) Attachment A:

This attachment is adopted to amend the Curry County Zoning Ordinance Zoning Map for the land in the Urban Growth Area. The new map will accomplish rezoning of portions of this land according to the level of services present on the properties, and formerly adopted material that identifies the amount and types of land needed within the UGB. This attachment addresses work tasks #1 & #3.

# 2) Attachments B through S:

These attachments change all or portions of the CCZO to implement the Curry County Transportation Plan. The attachments address work task #4.

# C. Ordinance #02-05

This is an "enabling ordinance" the purpose of which is to amend the Curry County Land Division Ordinance (CCLDO) by adoption of items identified as attachments. The attachments are specific products that accomplish implementation of the Curry County Transportation System

# 1) Attachments A & B:

These attachments are Transportation System Plans (TSP) for the City of Brookings and Curry County, adopted to address work task #4. The TSP's are separate, for the separate jurisdictions of the city and county, but must be consistent in the area of the UGB. The Curry County TSP is adopted and applicable by this action only to the UGB, and contains elements of the City of Brookings TSP to ensure consistency. The City's TSP is adopted in its entirety as a supporting document to the Goal 12 element of the Curry County Comprehensive Plan (CCCP).

# 2) Attachment C:

This attachment is the Goal 12 element of the CCCP which must be amended to include the adopted TSP to address work task #4.

# 3) Attachment D

This attachment is the City of Brookings Public Facilities Plan, adopted to address work task #3. The Public Facilities Plan is adopted as a supporting document to the Goal 11 element of the CCCP. It should be noted that remand issue #6 of the above-referenced remand issues approved by LCDC at the hearing held on May 22, 2001, required a specific amendment to the Special District Planning Coordination Agreements. This amendment required that detailed "urban service agreements" be completed with each special district at the time of adoption of the Public Facilities Plan for the UGB.

It is the county's responsibility to coordinate and negotiate these agreements, and extensive efforts have been made with no results. Exhibit A of this report is a copy of all activity to-date on the part of the county to obtain these agreements. The county has requested assistance from DLCD in further efforts to obtain these agreements.

# 4) Attachment E:

This attachment is adopted to address work task #3 as supporting documents to the city's Public Facilities Plan and therefore supporting documents to the CCCP. It includes a report and water conservation plan which conservation plan includes a water curtailment ordinance. This material is adopted to address the requirements in CCCP Section 14.8 (Plan Policies Regarding Urbanization).

Plan within the Urban Growth Area. The material is adopted to satisfy a specific work task identified in the above-referenced DLCD Orders. The following is a brief description of the attachments:

1) Attachment A:

This attachment amends a specific section of the CCZO to implement the changes in the Goal 12 element of the CCCP that incorporate the Curry County Transportation System Plan. This attachment addresses work task #4.

# IV. PROCESS

The public hearing will take place as advertised on August 30, 2002 in the City of Brookings. Each jurisdiction has a packet of materials which differ somewhat from each other for consideration. Public testimony, both written and oral, must be taken and time given for analysis and addressing, if possible, issues raised. When the public portion of the hearing is closed, consideration must be given to all issues raised, and a determination of when to adopt the material made. There are several choices; 1) close the public portion, consider all oral and written testimony, address all issues and adopt at the hearing; 2) close the public portion and determine to adopt at separate (City Council and Board of Commissioners) hearings at a later date.

Careful consideration should be given as to whether or not adequate time has been given to allow public participation, and whether or not adequate coordination has occurred with affected agencies. If both are determined to be adequate, options 1 or 2 above are valid. If determined otherwise, additional time should be allowed for corrective measures. These determinations will depend on the course of the hearing.

# **V. EXHIBITS** (Attached and included as part of this report).

Exhibit "A" Special District Package

cc: City of Brookings

City of Brookings Counsel

Curry County Board of Commissioners

**Curry County Counsel** 

Staff
DLCD
Office File